ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 4, 2010
3:36 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lesil McQiire, Co-Chair
Senator Bill Wel echowski, Co-Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Bert Stednman

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Thomas WAgoner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Update by the Adm nistration - ACES and its Effect on O and
Gas | nvest nent

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record.
W TNESS REQ STER

PATRICK S. GALVIN, Comm ssi oner
Al aska State Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overvi ew of ACES.

MARCI A DAVI S, Deputy Comm ssi oner
Al aska State Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed the ACES Status Report.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:36:51 PM

COCHAIR LESIL MCGQU RE called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:36 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stedman, Stevens, Wgoner and
McGui r e.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 4, 2010



Update by the Adm nistration - ACES and its Effect on Gl and
Gas | nvest nent

3:37:27 PM

PATRICK S. GALVIN, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Revenue (DOR),
Anchor age, Al aska, introduced Deputy Comm ssioner Marcia Davis
and outlined his presentation. He said he would give a brief
review of Alaska's Cear and Equitable Share (ACES) for the
people at honme and then turn it over to Deputy Conm ssioner
Davis to talk in nore detail about the ACES status report and
sone of the data that was generated to |look at the question of
ACES i npact on the investnment clinate.

3:38:18 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN began with a high-level overview to remnd
everyone of what the structure of ACES is intended to acconplish
and how that may play into its inpact on the investnent climate.
He explained that the term production tax value (PTV) is at the
heart of the calculation of what will actually be due; it is the
sales price of Alaska's oil at nmarket mnus the cost of the
tankers and pipeline to get the oil to market; and then, because
this is a net-based tax, mnus the cost to produce the oil. It
is the capital and operating expenditures associated wth
producing the oil, which conpanies deduct from their revenue in
order to generate the production tax value. So, he said, two
noving parts are going to drive PTV - the price and the
expenditures. (Slide 3)

SENATOR FRENCH interjected that the equation on slide 3 should
i nclude the word "minus" on the top |ine.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N agreed. He continued saying that the other
two terns they need to look at are the base tax rate on
production, 25 percent under ACES, and the progressive surcharge
rate, which is the additional tax rate that is added to the 25
percent based upon that extra production tax value. Wen the
profit on a barrel of oil goes above $30, then the tax rate
i ncreases. Between $30 and $92.50 profit, the rate goes up 4
percent per dollar of additional production tax value. Once the
profit gets above $92.50, which is the break-point of a 50
percent total tax rate between the base tax and the progressive
surcharge, it increases at 1 percent per dollar up to $342.50 of
profit, which is at a 75-percent total tax rate.

SENATOR FRENCH asked Conmi ssioner Glvin to remnd himwhere the
PTV kicks in on the price per barrel of oil.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 4, 2010



3:42: 24 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied that it is different for each
t axpayer, Dbecause <each wll have a different cost (both
operating and capital) associated with producing their oil. A
conpany that has a new devel opnent project under way my be
expending a significant anmount of noney during those years and
gets to deduct that immediately from its production tax val ue.
On average, across the North Slope a ballpark figure of $25 to
$27 is used to represent the per-barrel aggregate  of
transportation and |ease expenditures. That means that the
mar ket price (West Coast Alaska North Slope [ANS] price) needs
to be approximately $56 to $57 before progressivity kicks in.

3:43: 28 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said he thought the first $25 to $27 per barrel
escaped production tax and between $25 and $50 the tax is 25
percent, and that progressivity kicks in after $50.

COW SS|I ONER GALVI N added that a mnimumtax acts as a fl oor.

3:44: 20 PM

COW SSI ONER  GALVIN comented that for those who want nore
detail on this type of calculation, they go through a nuch nore
rigorous analysis of the different conponents in Senate Finance.

He reviewed the big picture tax cal culation, which was shown on
slide 4 as follows: multiply PTV tines the base tax rate to get
the base tax, nmultiply PTV tinmes the progressive surcharge rate
to get the progressive surcharge, conbine the base tax and the
progressive surcharge to get the pre-credit tax bill. He said
credits are in nultiple forms and cone right off the tax bill,
dollar-for-dollar. If the anmount after subtracting the credits
is negative and credits remain that can't be applied against the
tax bill, then those can be transferred to another tax bill or
submtted to the state for full paynent.

3:45:40 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS and CO CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI j oi ned t he meeti ng.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N explained that snall producers, those wth
production |l evels |less than 50,000 barrels per year, get a $12-
mllion off-the-top credit and an across-the-board 20-percent
credit on all capital expenditures. The exploration incentive
credit is 30 to 40 percent for certain expenditures that are
outside the current operating areas, and if a producer has no
production and is incurring operating and capital costs that

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2010



result in a negative PTV, the 25 percent tax rate results in a
| oss carry-forward that can be used as a credit in future years.

3:47:41 PM

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N provi ded two exanples to denonstrate the way
the state participates in these investnent factors. The first
assunmed a new entrant, a conpany that has no production in the
state at this time but is pursuing an exploration project that
requires a $200 million investrment (slides 6 and 7). Depending
on the location of that exploration activity, they would receive
a capital credit of 20 to 40 percent on those expenditures; so
their investnment is worth $40 to 80 mllion in terns of what
they would get back fromthe state. They would also |ikely incur
a tax loss which, at a base tax rate of 25 percent, would result
in an additional <credit, bringing credits to $50 mllion.
Between the two, they would qualify for credits on that $200
mllion investment of between $90 and $130 million. They could
either submt the credit to the state for cash back or find a
taxpayer who is willing to buy the tax credit fromthem

3:50: 11 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said it |looks as if a new entrant is going to get
back alnost half of his noney; it is like a 50-percent-off sale
t hrough the state.

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N confirmed that under the right circunstances
a new entrant would get 45 to 65 percent of their investnent
costs. He added that although they probably will not get to it
today, in future discussions this session they will talk about
some of the provisions that may hinder that transaction.

3:51: 06 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVI N continued that either way, whether they try
to get the cash back or transfer the credit to another taxpayer,
the state pays for that $200 million exploration activity.
Recogni zing that exploration itself is risky, the state bears
the risk associated with failure as well as a large part of the
cost of the exploration project.

He noved on to the second exanple, which assumed an incunbent
with current production (slide 8). If this producer pursues a
$200-m I lion devel opnent project within the existing field that
is not eligible for the exploration incentive program the
capital credit associated with that investnent will earn a 20
percent credit - so $40 mllion cones off the top. Reducing
their production tax value by the amunt of their capital
expenditure reduces their taxes in the amunt of their PTV

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- February 4, 2010



reduction - $200 mllion tinmes 25 percent - a $50-mllion
reduction in their taxes.

The second part to note, Conmi ssioner Galvin said, is that the
PTV establishes their progressivity surcharge - the higher their
PTV, the higher they slide up that scale. By mmking a $200

mllion investment and having it inmediately reduce their PTV,
they slide back down the scale, so the tax rate that will apply
to all of their production is reduced as well. In addition, the

$200 mllion gets nmultiplied by the reduced progressivity
surcharge, so both of those conponents add value, and the state
will provide an immedi ate tax benefit of at |east 45 percent of
the cost of that devel opnent investnent.

3:54: 48 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if that assunmes oil prices are over $25 and
t hey are paying a production tax.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N answered that even if they were not paying a
production tax, they would get the credit and be able to reduce
their PTV. |If that brought them down below $27, it would still
provide themwi th a simlar econom c benefit.

SENATOR FRENCH said he thought they had established that they
aren't paying any production tax with oil below $25 to $27 a
barrel and he didn't think the investnent shouldn't get them any
benefit but the credit.

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said the $25 to $27 he nentioned before was
an average. If an individual taxpayer was otherwise at the
average and then added a $200-million expenditure, t he
deductions would anpbunt to nore than $25 per barrel and becone a
| oss carry-forward for a subsequent credit.

SENATOR FRENCH ventured that for an existing producer with a new
devel opnment expenditure, the state would pay at |east $90

mllion and probably nore at today's oil prices.

3:56:41 PM

COMM SSI ONER GALVI N confirmed that the state will pay a total of
at least $90 mllion for an existing producer with a new

devel opnent expenditure and bears the risk if that devel opnent
fails.

3:57:30 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N recapped the key points in the two previous
exanples (slide 10). He said there is no difference in the cash

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 4, 2010



flow to the state, whether the investnment is nade by an existing
producer or a new entrant; either way, the state is going to be
out the noney in the form of reduced initial revenue, or in the
paynent of a credit certificate. But by taking on sone of the
risk and reducing the initial investnment hurdle for these
conpanies, the state is making the investnent nore attractive
than it would otherwise be. Recognhizing that, the state is
generally providing nore than 50 percent of the cost of all new
i nvestment and becones the largest investor in exploration and
devel opnment in the state under this system

3:58: 54 PM
COM SSIONER  GALVIN pointed to a graph of ACES nom nal
mar gi nal, and effective tax rates (slide 11), which illustrated

some of the confusion that occurs in public discussions
associ ated with ACES, because the tax rate can be described in
many different ways. He explained that when he says at certain
price-points the marginal tax rate associated with the ACES
system goes up to alnost 90 percent, it sounds I|ike an
incredibly high nunber, but that doesn't convey the whole
pi cture. Wat nost people think of with regard to the tax rate
is the nunber in statute, which starts at 25 percent, and clinbs
t hrough progressivity, and slides out potentially to 75 percent;
that is what is referred to as the nomnal tax rate. The
percentage of revenue that a producer pays in taxes at a given
market rate is referred to as the effective tax rate, and is one
that nost people are famliar wth.

He explained that the term "marginal tax rate" is a much
different calculation and determ nes how nuch of the additiona
revenue represented by a $1 increase in the price of oil is

going to be paid in taxes. Because of progressivity, that nunber
goes up fairly steeply. Ch the other hand, as that nunber goes
up, every dollar a conpany spends reduces its taxes by the sane
percentage. Wien the PTV is in the $92.50 range at an average of
$120 per barrel nmarket price, the rate hits that 90 percent
level and then drops off imrediately. At that point in tine,
every dollar spent by a conpany reduces their taxes by about
$.90. So the tax rate the conpany is paying is not really 90
percent. At that point, as the chart shows, they are paying |ess
than a 40-percent actual tax rate, so their incentive to invest
is greater. They can't control the price, but if they spend
nmoney it has a significant inpact on their tax bill. At these
rates, the state is participating at upwards of 90 percent.

4:04:21 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2010



SENATOR FRENCH asked Comnmi ssioner Galvin to go back one slide to
confirm his understanding of the tax rate. He said it appears
that at a market price of $100 per barrel the effective tax rate
is 28 or 29 percent; that rate represents the conpany's total
revenue divided by the total tax paid.

COW SS|I ONER GALVI N said that is correct.

4:05: 02 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN asked what inpact these different tax rates may
or may not have on a conpany's decision to continue an
investnment. He said some people have expressed concern that the
mar gi nal rate puts them at a di sadvantage when conpeting agai nst
other locations in the conpany for capital.

COCHAIR MCGU RE said she has also heard those concerns
expressed - that for some producers the ability to profit at the
high end becones the driving force behind decisions regarding
new i nvest nment.

4:06: 22 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N responded that they have to recognize that a
lag tinme exists between the decision to invest and when the
expenditures are actually made. If a conpany knew the price
would be in the $110 range when they actually spend the nobney,
they could count on the fact that the state would be paying the
bul k of the expenditure. The worst-case scenario is that prices
will be low when they make the investnent and high when the
production cones in.

4.:07:44 PM

CO CHAIR WELECHOWNBKI said he recalls that the admnistration
and the |egislature nmade a conscious decision to structure ACES
this way to encourage reinvestnent in Al aska. The state was
seeing oil conpanies making billions of dollars in profit and
not reinvesting any of that noney in Al aska, even though the
state had fairly low tax rates. Under the Economic Linmt Factor
(ELF), many fields had O percent severance tax rates and yet the
state did not see any investnent.

4:08:47 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said that is an accurate depiction of how
this systemis intended to work. It is intended to tax the noney
that is taken out of state at a higher rate than noney that is
i nvested back in Al aska.

CO CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if that was a good policy call.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2010



4:09: 27 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN replied that he would like to let Ms. Davis
go through her presentation before addressing that issue, so
they have all of the information in front of them

4:09:43 PM

MARCI A DAVI S, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR),
said she would be covering the information that was devel oped by
the Departnent of Revenue's Econom ¢ Research G oup, including
the revenue conparisons under the various production tax systens
the state has had: ELF, Petrol eum Production Tax (PPT) and ACES
She would also look at |ease expenditures, standard deduction
experiences, the oil and gas enploynent figures, and drilling
activity |evels.

She said the ACES Status Report was rel eased on January 14, 2010
(slides 13-14). The departnent began preparing it in |late sumer
to determne whether ACES is working the way it should. Wile
they were working on it, they began receiving inquiries from
various legislators asking the same questions Comr ssioner
Galvin was asking, so they rolled the answers to as many of
those questions as they could into the report. They |ooked at
confidential taxpayer data consisting of nonthly and annual tax
returns that had a level of detail that enabled them to | ook at
what types of expenditures were being made. The departnent was
given the right to request information from operators on what
they were seeing ahead in the one to four years, so they could
get an idea of where those conpani es thought they were going in
terms of expenditures. They requested enploynment statistics from
the Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent (DOLWD); they
inquired of the Alaska Ol and Gas Conservation Conm ssion
(ACGCC), which is the agency that issues well permts and tracks
conpletion reports throughout the state; they also obtained
information fromthe Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR)

M5. DAVIS said the question they were asked npost often was how
revenue to the state conpares under ACES versus PPT versus ELF

so slide 15 shows a bar graph conparing those figures for fisca

years 2007 through 2010. She noted that the revenue projections
for 2010 are based on the oil price forecast issued in fall of
2009 at $66.93 per barrel. In each of the years shown on the
graph, ACES did generate a l|larger ampunt of state revenue under
the production tax structure. She pointed out that ACES
outperfornms the prior system ELF, at about $51 per barrel Wst
Coast price, but the corollary is also true, that ELF
out perfornms ACES at under $51 per barrel Wst Coast price.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 4, 2010



She explained that, because ACES is a net tax, one has to ask
what | ease expenditures are being deducted. Lease expenditures
are made up of two categories of expenses: capital expenses,
which are hard costs that have a life and can be depreciated,
and operating expenditures, which tend to be upkeep, services,
| abor and ot her things that have to be done over and over again.

4:15:11 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if she had any data prior to 2007

M5. DAVIS replied that she had sonme data for CAPEX and sone data
for OPEX on the next two slides. The capital expenditures trend
shown on slide 16 was increasing from 2007. She added that the
operating expenditures shown were real reported costs, not the
standard deduction for those earlier years.

4:16: 11 PM
COCHAIR MCGQUI RE asked Ms. Davis if the data differentiates
bet ween capi tal expendi tures for repairs to exi sting

infrastructure and for new i nfrastructure.

M5. DAVIS answered that they did try to separate the details of
those expenditures using the data they had by identifying in a
conservative manner those things that were clearly tied to
wells, drilling, workovers, coiled tube drilling, and costs that
were directly associated with anything related to production.
They considered everything else "other,”™ which would be
mai nt enance and things conpanies would do anyway. They found
t hat both production-related and mai ntenance-rel ated capital and
operating expenditures were goi ng up.

4:17: 50 PM
CO CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI said that is helpful to know and asked if
she had that broken down sonmewhere.

M5. DAVIS answered that they had not represented the break-down,
in part because that is confidential taxpayer information. It
can be aggregated, but it varies by unit. Unit information for
at least three owners can be displayed, but not for fewer than
three owners. So that would provide an inconplete portrait.

4:18: 42 PM
CO- CHAIR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the bar graph representing CAPEX
and OPEX i ncl uded mai nt enance costs or not.

M5. DAVIS answered that it included maintenance and producti on.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -9- February 4, 2010



4:18: 58 PM
At ease due to technical difficulties.

4:20: 53 PM
CO CHAIR MCGUI RE cal | ed the neeting back to order

4:21:13 PM

CO CHAIR W ELECHONBKI asked Ms. Davis to confirm that
mai ntenance is included in the figures represented on the bar
chart.

MS5. DAVIS said it is.

CO CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she could give them a rough
estimate of how nuch is mai ntenance.

M5. DAVIS replied that one of the departnent's challenges is
that is has data from the tax returns only. So, they have
partial data for 2007, all of 2008, and nonthly returns for
2009; they wouldn't have final returns for 2009 until March of
2010. They did the calculation to see trends, she said, but
hadn't done a chart for that yet. She said she expected to have
better data as they get a few nore years under their belts.

4:22:24 PM

SENATOR FRENCH opined that what nany people are referring to
when they say "nmaintenance costs" is really the costs that BP
incurred as the result of their failure to maintain their flow
lines for so |ong.

M5. DAVIS responded that while that was certainly the start of
it, under ACES any costs that are related to gross negligence or
associated with a spill cannot be deducted. That kind of
experience, however, teaches operators what needs to be done; so
one woul d expect to see nore nmaintenance costs after an incident
like that.

4:23:23 PM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked if Pt. Thomson is a significant part of
t hese nunbers.

M5. DAVIS answered that part of the forecast of North Slope
expenditures from fiscal year 2009 into fiscal year 2011
includes sone large expenditures for new developnent in Pt.
Thonmson, Qooguruk, and Ni kait chuq.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 4, 2010



SENATOR HUGA NS said he recalled Exxon talking about how
expensive the wup-front costs of their investnents were. He
wondered how | arge a chunk of the listed nunbers it was.

M5. DAVIS responded that confidentiality provisions prevent her
from speaking with reference to Pt. Thonmson individually.
However their revenue source book identified Pt. Thonson,
Ni kai tchug, and Oooguruk as a significant chunk of the capita
expenses they expect to see going forward.

4:24:51 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N sai d with ref erence to Senat or
W el echowski's request for historical information, although they
cannot reveal taxpayer information, perhaps the commttee could
get a cost estimate from Exxon as an operator, then they could
conpare it to the overall figures to get a sense for how it
stacks up on an annual basis.

SENATOR HUGA NS said he just wants to be sure they aren't
drawi ng concl usions from an inconpl ete picture.

M5. DAVI S agreed.

4:27:00 PM
SENATOR HUGE NS said he would be interested to hear if she saw
some picture energing fromthis activity.

M5. DAVIS said that is precisely why they were trying to | ook at
whi ch of the expenditures were associated with "production adds"
and which were actually increasing production.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if that information was sonewhere in the
sl i des.

M5. DAVIS answered that that was the back side of the question
regarding what was and was not nmaintenance. The growh in
expenditures was not all about nmintenance; it was about
production adds, which are al so increasing.

4:28:10 PM

CO CHAIR MCGQUI RE said she would be interested in seeing a better
breakdown in ternms of where the investnents are for Pt. Thonson,
Ni kai tchuq, and Oooguruk are, because two of those fields have
royalty reductions in place. If capital investnent were being
made in those fields, then it was certainly not indicative of
any kind of an ACES pattern, but rather of what the state had
done to incentivize devel opnent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- February 4, 2010



4:29:09 PM

COM SSIONER  GALVIN comented that the incentives offered
through royalty relief and the production tax are significantly
different in ternms of scale. Because royalty is a smaller
percentage of the overall take, it would provide a nmuch smaller
incentive than what the state provides through the production
t ax.

4:30:42 PM

CO- CHAIR MCGUI RE conceded the distinction between severance tax
relief and royalty relief, but said they can push and pull a
nunber of different |levers and buttons to encourage exploration,
and they are trying to figure out how best to do that while
mai ntaining a healthy balance between the state's take and
i ndustry's take.

4:31:30 PM

COW SSI ONER  GALVIN responded to Senator Huggins' question
regarding Pt. Thonson that it was |less than a quarter of the
overal | capital expenditure.

4:31: 57 PM

M5. DAVIS stated that DOR can provide operating costs on a
historical basis only for Prudhoe Bay; the prior tax systens
were not net tax, so they didn't really gather data related to
OPEX or CAPEX, and the state was privy to sone historical costs
associated with Prudhoe Bay only because of discussions that
took place relative to the Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act.

4. 32:46 PM

She continued to say that the graph on slide 17 tracked those
operating expenses from 2003 through 2009 and showed they were
i ncreasing. The next question would be whether that represents
an increase in costs per unit or if it actually represents an
increase in activity; the answer is a conbination of both. She
stated that while wunit costs have increased, activity had
i ncreased as wel | .

COCHAIR MCGQU RE noted that the first meaningful drop on that
chart was between 2009 and 2010.

M5. DAVIS agreed. She said the reason for that drop was that
they are seeing the global indexes for operating expenditures
comng down; their data on per-unit costs was also showng a
downward trend. This was essentially because oil prices cane
down from the peak at the end of 2008 and unit costs of goods

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- February 4, 2010



tend to trail oil price by about a year to a year and a half; so
the costs of goods and services were just catching up to the
decrease in oil price.

4:34: 38 PM
CO CHAI R W ELECHONSKI asked if this chart indicated a good thing
or a bad thing - if all costs had gone down or if materials and

| abor had gone down and, therefore, the operating costs.

M5. DAVIS said on the surface it was hard to tell whether it was
good or bad. They |ooked deeply enough to know this was not
sinply an increase in the cost of goods and services, but rather
reflected an increase in activity - a good thing.

4:35:32 PM
COM SSIONER  GALVIN clarified for M. Davis that Senat or
W el echowski's question went to the 2010 trend.

CO CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI confirnmed that his question was whether
the projected reduction in costs was a positive thing. He said
if the costs totaled $11.80 per barrel in 2009 and now total $9
per barrel, that should be a good thing for the producers.

M5. DAVIS agreed that it was a good indicator that the industry
had been able to get the service industry to respond by |owering
their costs as revenues went down.

COCHAIR MCGQU RE pointed out that M. Davis indicated a
conbination of factors in play here and that there is a direct
correlation between both the unit costs and activity. If prices
go down, the reduction in costs wuld nean a reduction in
activity.

4:36: 42 PM

M5. DAVIS answered yes, they have gathered publicly available
data about what sone of the mmjor conpanies are doing, and they
all are cutting back on expenditures because of the gl obal
recession. The only question is how much and where. DOR is
finding that sone of that may be a reflection of sonme ratcheting
back of expenditures at a corporate center |evel, plus the |ower
expenditure of unit costs.

4:37:22 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said, in general, the escalation of per-unit
costs was not a good thing for the state or for the producers.
The question M. Davis answered initially was whether the
i ncrease indicated that sonething had happened with regard the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- February 4, 2010



incentive that ACES created back in 2007 wth regard to
operating expenses in particular. And this didn't seem to be
driven by an investnent-incentive, decision-making nethodol ogy.
As she indicated, he said, nost of this was driven by a steep
escalation in across-the-board oil and gas sector costs,
followed by a drop-off across the oil and gas sector worldw de
after the peak in 2009. It wasn't reflective of ACES either way.

SENATOR HUGGE NS recal l ed previous discussions of "lifting cost”
and asked if that was synonynous with operating expenditure.

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N answer ed t hat t hey wer e pretty
i nterchangeable; |ifting costs are a conponent of operating
costs.

SENATOR HUGA NS noted that these nunbers were |less than half of
what they were tal king about in relation to lifting costs.

4:40: 15 PM

COMM SSI ONER GALVI N cautioned that |lifting costs associated with
the whole North Slope were different from those isolated for
Prudhoe Bay, which is nore efficient due to its size and scale.
Al so, under ACES a provision now allows the departnent to show
the legislature some information on Prudhoe Bay that they could
not previously share.

4:41: 20 PM
SENATOR HUGA NS commented that they need to know how Prudhoe Bay
nunbers conpare to the rest of the North Sl ope.

4:41: 42 PM

M5. DAVI S responded that the departnment would provide a range of
what they considered to be the OPEX and the CAPEX charges on a
per-barrel basis. She said she worked in the industry for nine
years and had heard "lifting costs"” used in various ways and she
woul d hesitate to opine how it was used historically with this
body.

4:42: 11 PM

She noved on to slides 19 and 20 that showed the historical
trends associated wth capital expenditures. She said they
acquired this information from the TIE credit data that was
presented to the departnment.

4:42: 32 PM
COWM SSI ONER GALVI N added that when the PPT was passed, TIE was
also referred to as a "claw back” and allowed conpanies to earn

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- February 4, 2010



credits for the capital expenditures they had nade for five
years in the past. That gave the forward-producing conpanies a
reason to provide the departnment with nunbers for their previous
five years of capital expenditures.

4:43: 31 PM

M5. DAVIS said the figures reflected on the slides were not
restricted to Prudhoe Bay and that the chart showed a dip in
capital expenditures during the period when ELF was in place
from about 2001 to 2005. They started to build comng out of
2005 and continued to increase through 2009. She highlighted
that this chart didn't indicate a decrease in capita
expenditures after the passage of PPT and ACES.

She said the forecast was for about $2.5 billion in capital
expenditures for fiscal year 2010, and about $2.9 billion for
2011. Unfortunately, the chart was in calendar years and the
forecast was in fiscal years, so it only roughly illustrated the
t rend.

COCHAIR MCGUI RE asked if the projection in expenditures was
based on answers provided by the conpanies to questions on
Departnent of Revenue forns.

M5. DAVIS answered yes; they ask operators at all of the fields
i n devel opnent or exploration what they are doing over the next
five years.

4:46: 01 PM

COCHAIR MCGQU RE said the commttee needed to explore why
conpanies |ike ConocoPhillips have for the first tinme in 44
years said they won't drill an exploration well.

M5. DAVIS rem nded Senator McCQuire that they reported a rolled-
up nunber for capital expenditures on the whole North Sl ope.

4:47: 00 PM

COCHAIR MCGQU RE reiterated that she would like M. Davis to
come back to the conmttee with as nuch information as she was
able to provide on where those expenditures were being nmade. She
pointed out that the Resources Conmmttee had a history of
| ooking at the individual resources in each part of the state to
determ ne how to incentivize each particular field.

4:48: 23 PM

CO CHAIR WELECHOANSKI said he wanted to be sure he understood
the chart correctly. Under ELF, the state had quite a nunber of

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- February 4, 2010



fields that paid little or nothing in severance tax from 2001 to
2005 and it saw a pretty steady decline in capital expenditures
on the North Slope during that tinme. PPT becane effective Apri
1, 2006 and there was a pretty significant increase; that upward
trend continued after ACES becane |law in 2007. He asked if that
was correct.

M5. DAVIS replied that it was. She expanded that part of the
departnment's forecasting involved |ooking at what was happening
worl dwi de and they had confirmation that capital costs were
com ng down globally. That told themthat if they were seeing an
increase in the overall capital costs incurred on the North
Slope, it was due to activity as opposed to increased costs per
unit.

4:49: 53 PM
CO CHAIR W ELECHONSKI asked if she was using "capital costs"” and
"capital expenditures" interchangeably.

MS. DAVI S answered yes.

CO CHAIR W ELECHOASKI said the chart indicates that the rest of
the world experienced a steady increase in investnment from 2001
t hrough 2005, but Al aska showed a steady decline. However, 2009
saw a pretty significant decline in capital expenditures
wor | dwi de, but Alaska had an increase. He asked if he was
readi ng that correctly.

MS. DAVI S answered that was correct.

4:50: 42 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS said the debate in the |egislature when they
were going through the tax structure was gross versus net. He
asked if Ms. Davis would say they nmade a good decision on ACES,
based on the data that was now avail abl e.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN responded that net had proven to be very
valuable to this state

4:51: 20 PM

M5. DAVIS said one of things they wanted to address in the ACES
report is the wunique feature of "ACES past," the standard
deduction provision. This provision said a field that had
produced a cumulative 1 billion barrels of oil up to the
effective date of ACES could deduct the operating expenses
associated with their 2006 Ilevel of operating expenditures.
Al though it was grossed up slightly, it was indexed off the 2006

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- February 4, 2010



operating expense rates. The reason for this was that the state
had little experience with what the costs comng out of those
|arge fields would be. Since the large fields were the dog, not
the tail, there was concern about what the revenue hit would be
to the state because of the leap froma gross tax structure to a
net tax structure. This provision was to be in place for only
two and a half years and expired on Decenber 31, 2009. She said
that slide 22 illustrated the anmount of additional tax paid by
t axpayers who had interests in Prudhoe and Kuparuk during the
hal f year of 2007, all of 2008, and all of 2009 because of the
difference between the standard deduction allowed and their
actual reported operating expenses. Presunming the reported
operating expenses were correct, she said, this was the increase
in the state's production tax. Even though in FY 2008 the
operating expense was approximately $2.6 billion and in 2009 it
was $2.7 billion, there was a big difference in the revenue
i npact because the overall tax rate was higher due to the nuch
hi gher oil prices in 2008.

4:53: 57 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS recalled that the standard deduction was
i ntroduced on the floor of the House with very little debate. He
asked if the admi nistration supported the standard deducti on.

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied that the admnistration did not
propose a standard deduction, but the governor at that tine was
not opposed.

4:54:38 PM

M5. DAVIS said another indication of activity level was oil and
gas industry enploynent and that the departnent had obtained
statistics from the Alaska Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnment (DOLWD), which were shown on the graph on slide 23.
She noted that this graph was different from the one in the
publ i shed ACES Status Report, because they had not received al
of the data for 2009 at the time it was developed. The
information on slide 23 was adjusted to reflect nore conplete
information. In 2008 the oil and gas enploynent nunbers were
12,900. In 2009, when the report was published, the nunber was
13,500; that was revised to 13,000 on this slide, so there was
an increase of 100 between 2008 and 2009. The forecast fromthe
Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Developnent for 2010 was
12,700, a decrease of about 300 jobs. According to the graph,
2007 through 2010 are the highest oil and gas industry
enpl oyment nunbers since the beginning of field devel opnment.

4:56: 26 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- February 4, 2010



SENATOR FRENCH said he worked in the oil industry until 1992 and
did not renenber anything that would account for a major drop in
enpl oynent, but the chart indicates that between 1991 and 1992
the industry |ost about 2000 jobs. He asked if such Ilarge
fluctuations are common in the industry.

4:57:13 PM

M5. DAVIS said according to the Departnment of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent, oil and gas enploynent is very project-
dependant and when workers are let go it takes sone tine for
them to be reabsorbed into other projects. They would probably
have to | ook at what major project mght have been concluded in
1991 to explain the drop.

4:57:59 PM

CO CHAIR MCGQUI RE stated that both investnent and enploynent are
focal points for the legislature. She said she was interested in
knowi ng whether jobs had shifted away from those related to
mai nt ai ni ng infrastructure and t owar d bui | di ng new
infrastructure. She also wanted to know whether M. Davis had
| ooked at unenploynment insurance filings for people in oil and
gas sector jobs.

M5. DAVI S responded that DOR has access to reporting related to
sonme state taxes and state prograns under the jurisdiction of
the Departnment of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent, but none of
that reporting was specific to the oil and gas industry. They
based their unenpl oynent statistics primarily on payroll records
that tend to be the nost conplete, because enployers are
required to report their payroll for purposes of paying the
unenpl oynment ESC tax. She was advised that the current rate of
unenpl oynent filings is no higher than it was in 2003.

5:00: 24 PM

CO CHAIR MCQUI RE said she wanted to understand as a policy-maker
what inpacts the legislature's efforts are having on oil and gas
enpl oyment regarding the data for 2008, 2009 and 2010.

5:01: 40 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said in response to Senator MGuire's first
guestion regarding a breakdown between maintenance and
production jobs that the Departnent of Revenue does not have
that information. He said he did ask the Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent about it and was told by Conmm ssioner
Bi shop's statistical econom st that the departnent does not get
the reports in a formthat allows themto discern that.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 4, 2010



5:03:21 PM
COM SSIONER GALVIN said they can see that the trend in
enpl oynment seened to track expenditures pretty closely.

5:03:59 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS remarked that slide 23 was interesting because
it showed that enploynment was actually lower in 2001 than it was
when prices were so lowin the |ate 80s and early 90s.

5:05: 08 PM

M5. DAVIS pointed out that the dip in enploynent from 2001 to
2003 mrrored the dip in capital expenditures on slide 19; so
| abor seenmed to track the CAPEX, which could be reflective of
projects that were going on in that tinme period.

SENATOR HUGE NS said the chart nmade it appear that things were
going pretty well in Alaska around 1991, but that sure wasn't
t he case where he |ived.

5:06:17 PM
CO CHAIR WELECHOMNSKI said it would be helpful to himto see a
worl dwi de oil and gas industry enploynment conparison. He asked
if Ms. Davis had any sense of what enploynment had been doing
wor | dwi de.

M5. DAVIS replied that they hadn't |ooked at enploynment nunbers
globally, but said she would try to find them She continued
that they also obtained information from the Alaska Ol and Gas
Conservation Conm ssion (AOGCC) that tracks drilling rigs and
conpletions. Slide 24 showed a graph of active drilling rigs in
Al aska from 2005 t hrough 2009 using the Wst Coast spot price of
oil. The Conmm ssion concluded that there was relatively flat rig
usage through this time period with a drop-off in the last three
quarters of 2009; they were not sure what that drop-off
represented, but it |agged PPT and ACES enact nent.

CO CHAI R MCGUI RE asked when that chart was conpl et ed.

M5. DAVIS answered that they got the final data from AOGCC at
t he end of Decenber 2009.

5:08: 39 PM
CO CHAIR W ELECHOWBKI asked why Alaska has historically had
fewer wells drilled than other oil-producing states |I|ike

Wom ng, Gkl ahoma, and Texas.

5:09: 08 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- February 4, 2010



COMM SSI ONER GALVI N responded that it was due to a conbination
of things; nunber one is probably cost. The per-well cost in
Al aska is significantly higher than in those other states. The
logistics of drilling a well, particularly an exploration well,
in Alaska are much nore challenging; access to land is an issue
in that a significant part of Alaska's oil and gas land is
| ocked up in existing | eases.

5:10: 09 PM

CO CHAIR W ELECHOWBKI suggested that Alaska think bigger. He
stressed that the state needs to find a way to encourage snaller
conpanies to get out there and drill not five or six nore wells
per year, but hundreds.

5:11: 01 PM

M5. DAVIS related that many new entrants comrent that it is
costly to do work in Alaska, so a job has to be big enough to
justify the expense. Things those conpanies take for granted
when they are drilling in Womng, like the ability to nove a
rig across 20 mles fairly easily, are a big deal on the North
Sl ope. From their perspective, the state could help them nost by
inmproving the infrastructure to open up access.

5:12: 02 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N asserted that a starting point in trying to
address these barriers was a system like the one Al aska now has
in ACES where the state participates significantly in the up-

front costs. The fact that the state wll pay upwards of half
the cost is a significant incentive that was not there
previously. Dealing with access and permtting issues wll also

be in the interests of the both the state and the producers.

5:14: 47 PM

M5. DAVIS pointed out that the increase in rig activity shown on
slide 24 l|ags behind Wst Coast price fluctuations by about
three quarters. They |ooked deeper to see how high the
correlation is between oil prices and these types of
expenditures and found that developnment expenditures seem to
have a very high correlation (slide 25).

5:15:41 PM

Moving on to slide 26 and wells conpleted, Ms. Davis said the
AOGCC did not see nuch of a correlation between nunbers of wells
conpl eted and the enactnent of PPT or ACES.

Finally, she said the Departnment of Revenue was asked what
conpanies were actually drilling in Al aska during the cal endar

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 4, 2010



year 2009, so they provided a list of those conpanies on slide
27.

5:16:26 PM

SENATOR HUGA NS referred to the graph on slide 24 show ng
drilling activity and asked if the trend shown there indicated
that the state should see an increase in drilling activity based

on the cost per barrel of oil.

M5. DAVIS said the Departnent of Revenue is forecasting a
relatively flat oil price for the comng year, so she would
expect activity to be fairly level as well.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said he keeps hearing reports from oil service

conpani es that they aren't drilling, so he would expect to see a
downt urn

5:17:36 PM

M5. DAVIS said their information is not definitive; it wll be

interesting to see how it turns out.

5:17:50 PM
SENATOR FRENCH said he thought Exxon was drilling in 2009, but
they were not listed on slide 27.

M5. DAVIS said she got the list from AOCGCC and the data may not
be conpl et e.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the commttee would hear from nenbers of
the oil industry today.

CO CHAIR MCGQUIRE replied that they are not schedul ed to speak at
this nmeeting.

5:18: 42 PM

M5. DAVIS summarized that the information the Departnent of
Revenue was able to gather from various state agencies and the
tax system does not reveal a direct negative inpact due to the
state's tax changes.

5:19:46 PM

SENATOR HUGE NS said one of Senator Stedman's concerns going
into the open season for the gas pipeline is whether the state
will suffer a serious loss of revenue due to the association
bet ween oil and gas.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- February 4, 2010



COMM SSI ONER GALVIN said he agreed that all of the nmenbers need
to be aware of the relationship between oil and gas production
They need to discuss the price parity issue and what its inpact
could be, look at ways to address the problens it may create
and decide whether they need to sonething about it before the
end of this session.

5:21:42 PM

COCHAIR MCGQUIRE thanked everyone for their coments and
adj ourned the neeting at 5:21 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- February 4, 2010



